Printing
It Was Our Middle Name




or most of GPO'’s first 15 decades printing

was front and center. GPO was the offspring

of the Industrial Revolution, which moved
printing with moveable type from a large-scale
handcraft to a fully industrial manufacturing process.
From its first day GPO was a power shop, no wood or
iron hand presses here, but a battery of large bed-
and-platen presses, run by an elaborate system of
belts and pulleys driven by a 40-horsepower steam
engine. Electricity superseded steam power in the
1880s. In its first three decades GPO grew from 23
presses to more than 100, a number which would
double in the next 30 years.

At the turn of the 20th century, typesetting, which
had previously been entirely done by hand, was
revolutionized by the invention of machines that
cast metal type on demand. The new process not
only saved time in the assembling of words, lines
and pages, but eliminated the laborious task of
“distributing” type (returning it to cases for re-use).
The adoption of machine typesetting (at roughly
the same moment when cheaper wood-pulp based
paper became widely available) began a revolution,
making printed books, pamphlets, and magazines
more widely available than ever before.

In the early 20th century technological innovation
again shifted from a process in which letters in
raised relief (type) transferred ink directly to paper,
to a process in which impressions are transferred,
on the basis of chemical properties, first to a
rubber roller and then to paper. Offset lithography
opened the way for longer runs, the introduction of
multi-color printing, and eventually today’s digital
printing.

Although GPO was not always the first to adapt
these huge technological shifts, owing to its
tremendous size and the huge investments at any
given moment in existing technology and skills,
once these shifts took place the “Big Shop” grew
and diversified accordingly.

For this book, all the allied processes of printing,
including composing, platemaking, proofreading,
presswork, and photoengraving, are grouped

in a single chapter. The images tell the story of
more than 150 years of almost uninterrupted
technological transformation.
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The building opened in 1903 (Building 1) was designed entirely with hand composing in mind. Although by the time of this photo, around 1910, machine composition
had made its appearance and was rapidly gaining ground, a significant amount of type was still set by hundreds of hand compositors using a stock hundreds of tons
of foundry type.
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The GPO Monotype section was remarkable in many ways, starting with its sheer size, 120 keyboards at the peak. The keyboards required no electricity, only
compressed air to operate. Because Linotype operators sat next to a pot of molten type metal, the machine was thought “unsuitable” for women to operate. The
Monotype section, on the other hand, had female keyboard operators. Keyboard operators were considered journeymen printers. Operators of the casting machines
were not. Photo circa 1910.
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Hand compositors feared that machines would replace skilled workers. In fact, because of the vast increase in production made possible by the machines and the
burgeoning demand for printed documents, GPO soon employed more compositors than ever before. This photo, from around 1910, shows GPO when this
transformation to a fully industrial shop was underway. In the frame are younger men who may well have been trained specifically as Linotype operators alongside
older compositors who had certainly been retrained as the machine composition sections grew. With industrialization came increased attention to safety and sanitary
conditions and workers were constantly reminded to keep the shop floor neat and use the cuspidors (upper right).
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The operator keyed copy on the
keyboard that had letters arranged
according to frequency of use in

the English language. Depressing
the keys caused a brass key, a
“matrix” to fall from a channel in
the sloped magazine above into a
row just in front of the keyboard.
When a complete line had been
keyed, the machine moved the line
of matrices into position to correctly
justify the line and create a mold for
the typemetal to be injected into,
creating the slug, a complete line of
type. All this took less than a minute.
Photo circa 1975.







One of GPO’s many Linotype and Intertype machines was the “General Pershing,” a 1910 model 5 machine, first sold to a newspaper in Chaumont, France. After the
U.S. arrival in World War |, the machine was requisitioned by the American Expeditionary Forces under Gen John J. Pershing. It became part of the 29th Engineers
Mobile Printing Battalion, which printed Pershing’s orders and other materials for the American forces from a group of trucks.
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The Pershing Linotype was retired from service in 1950 and was placed in Harding Hall as a memorial to GPO’s World War | veterans. In 2011 it became a prominent
part of GPO’s 150th Anniversary History Exhibit.
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Once corrected, the galley type was made up into page form, a process known as “imposing.” Here compositors are at work at stone-topped tables imposing page
forms in frames called “chases.” Chases could be taken directly to the bed of the press, although in most cases at GPO, a series of plates, which exactly duplicated
the set and imposed type, were struck. A further set of “page proofs” was often taken and checked before plates were struck. Photo circa 1930.
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When GPO was created in 1861,
the Industrial Revolution had brought
a wide variety of innovations and
improvements to printing presses.
Over its history, GPO has employed
a staggering variety of presses,
first powered by steam, then by
electricity. Presses are classified by
the way paper is fed (either by the
sheet or from a roll or web), and by
the mechanism by which the type
and paper come into contact (on

a flat bed, a cylinder, a roller, etc.)
In a very early photo, web-fed
rotary presses are in use in the old
(pre-1903) GPO building, probably
about 1900.
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In another photo from about 1905, pressmen are working a Hoe web-fed cylinder press which was bought off the exposition floor at the St. Louis International
Exposition in 1904. The press became know as Press #1, because it was the first to be assigned a brass plate with an equipment inventory number, a practice that
probably started when Building 1 was occupied. The press eventually became a mainstay of postal card production, and remained in service until the 1980s, when it
was donated to a museum.
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In the early years of the 20th century the next huge technological breakthrough after machine typesetting was offset printing, in which an impression of the imposed
page was transferred to a photosensitive plate, which then transferred ink to a rubber blanket from which the paper was printed. It was a process that speeded up
production and extended pressruns, but because of the vast size of GPQO’s plant investment, and skepticism on the part of printers about the quality of the product, it
only made inroads during and after World War Il. Here offset plates are being prepared, during the 1950s.
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By the 1980s, hot metal typesetting at GPO was on its way out. Linotype and Monotype compositors were retrained, and the shift to offset continued. In 1979, the
Congressional Record began to be printed from offset plates derived from Linotype forms. On January 6, 1982, the last issue printed from Linotype composition was
sent to press. Hot metal production ended completely in 1985. These compositors are correcting the last pages of the Record set in hot metal.
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